OVERTON
» Early history of the town

Overton has origins as a settlement well before the end of the thirteenth century. It appears
in Domesday Book as a manor, and in the mid-twelfth century was the site of a castle in the
hands of Madog ap Maredudd, prince of Powys.34 In July 1279, Robert de Crevequer at his
manor Overton received a charter from the king for a market to be held on Wednesdays, as
well as an annual fair on the ‘vigil, feast and morrow of the Nativity of St Mary and the
twelve days following’.35 In 1286 Edward granted Overton to his wife, Eleanor, having
stayed there himself in September 1283 and October 1284.3® During the queen’s lifetime,
before 1290, Thomas le Taverner and Richard de Felton received lands in Overton, but
their descriptions seem to relate to large units of property rather than urban plots.37

The grant of a borough charter by the king comes in January 1292.3!8 It contains the usual
privileges, making the town a ‘free borough’ and ‘the men of the said town free burgesses’,
with their own prison, the right to elect representatives, and a ‘gild merchant with a hanse
and other customs and liberties thereto pertaining’, plus a clause giving freedom to ‘any
man’s bondman’ who comes to live there and who remains there ‘for a year and a day
without being claimed’.39 In the same year a total of 56 taxpayers were present there, and
12 others in the market, suggesting a distinction between it and the borough.32¢ A year
later, Reginald de Grey ‘was ordered to go in person to Overton to distribute burgages to
those who wished to take them up’, and ‘burgesses were to build houses and live in them
on the king’s demesne lands’, as well as arable land and woods.32* From these woods ‘they
shall have the timber... to build their burgages’.322 Grey was of course himself responsible
for founding the new town and castle of Ruthin, in Denbighshire, established a decade
earlier,323 and was therefore no doubt reasonably experienced in handling such matters.

The town was shortly ‘badly ravaged’ in the Welsh revolt of 1294-5.324 Expenditure
followed on the castle in 1301-2, ‘enclosing anew the garden of the Lord Prince of
Overton... both with palings and a thorn hedge called Hurzun’.325 A little later again, in
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1309, the burgesses of Overton sent a letter to the king explaining the effects of the revolt,
complaining that the Welsh ‘ought to rebuild, at their own cost, the king’s manor and mills
there’ but ‘have rebuilt nothing’.32¢ Subsequently, in 1403, ‘Glyndwr put it to flames and
virtually destroyed the entire vill, forcing it to be largely abandoned by the English
inhabitants’, and by the sixteenth century the town had but twenty houses.327
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